Public Document Pack

Democratic Services Section
Legal and Civic Services Department
Belfast City Council
City Hall
Belfast
BT1 5GS



HYBRID MEETING OF THE STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE

Dear Alderman/Councillor,

The above-named Committee will meet both online and in-person in the Lavery Room, City Hall on Thursday, 20th February, 2025 at 5.30 pm, for the transaction of the business noted below.

You are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully,

John Walsh

Chief Executive

AGENDA:

1. Routine Matters

- (a) Apologies
- (b) Minutes
- (c) Declarations of Interest

2. Motions

- (a) Notice of Motion Action to Address Empty Homes (Pages 1 4)
- (b) Notice of Motion Developing a Sponsorship and Philanthropy Network in Belfast (Pages 5 8)
- (c) Notice of Motion Dogs in Kennels Transfer of Ownership (Pages 9 12)



Agenda Item 2a



Subject:

STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE

Notice of Motion – Action to Address Empty Homes

| Date: | 20th February, 2025 |
|--|---|
| Reporting Officer: | Nora Largey, City Solicitor/Director of Legal and Civic Services |
| Contact Officer: | Jim Hanna, Democratic Services and Governance Manager |
| | |
| Restricted Reports | |
| Is this report restricted? | Yes No X |
| Insert number 1. Information relating to 2. Information likely to r. 3. Information relating to council holding that i. 4. Information in connects. Information in relation 6. Information showing person; or (b) to make | o any individual reveal the identity of an individual o the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the |
| If Yes, when will the report | t become unrestricted? |
| After Committee Decision After Council Decision | |
| Sometime in the future | |
| Never | |
| Call-in | |
| Is the decision eligible for | Call-in? Yes X No |

| 1.0 | Purpose | of Report/Summary of Main Issues |
|-----|---|--|
| 1.1 | To consider the Notice of Motion received for the meeting of the Council on 3rd March, 202 | |
| | in relation | to Action to Address Empty Homes. |
| 2.0 | Recomm | endation |
| 2.1 | which cor | are asked to note that, in accordance with Standing Orders, Notices of Motion mmit the Council to expenditure or falls within the remit of a particular Committee eferred to the appropriate committee for consideration and report. |
| | that a sub | ne Members are only asked to note that the Notice of Motion has been received and esequent report will be brought to Committee, if that Committee so agrees, outlining I consideration of the Notice of Motion and the potential costs implications. |
| | The Committee is asked to note that this motion will be referred on the first instance to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee. | |
| 3.0 | Main Report | |
| | Key Issue | <u>es</u> |
| | | mittee will be aware that Standing Orders 13 (m) to (r), as agreed by the Council at g on 4th October, are as follows: |
| | (m) | The Standards and Business Committee will have delegated authority to adopt or reject Notices of Motion. The Lord Mayor will indicate at the Council meeting those Notices of Motion that have been considered by the Standards and Business Committee and whether such Notices of Motion were rejected or adopted. In either case, the proposer only may speak on the issue at Council. |
| | (n) | The Standards and Business Committee will refer all Notices of Motion directly to a standing committee when the matter to which the Notice of Motion refers falls within the remit of that committee. At Council, the Lord Mayor will indicate that the Notice of Motion was received and referred. There will be no speakers on such Notices of Motion at Council. |
| | (0) | The Standards and Business Committee will refer Notices of Motion for consideration by full Council when the Notice of Motion relates to a strategic or constitutional matter. |
| | (p) | The Standards and Business Committee will not have the power to amend the wording of any Notice of Motion that is being referred to the full Council for debate. |
| | (q) | Any amendments to Notice of Motions to be proposed at the Council are to be furnished at least one day in advance of going to the full Council and will be |

(r) In referring any matter to the full Council, the Standards and Business Committee may determine to restrict contributions to the debate in relation to any Notice of Motion to one per political party. At the Council meeting, the Lord Mayor will clearly indicate if the restriction applies.

3.2

The following motion has been received:

Action to Address Empty Houses

"This Council notes with concern the growing number of households (48,000) on the housing waiting list.

The Council also notes with concern that despite the huge demand for public housing: there remains a substantial number of homes in Belfast which are empty. According to Land and Property this figure sits at 3,694 for the Belfast area.

As a local authority, the Council commits to working with the relevant departments to try to bring empty homes back into use as affordable and social housing. Council notes that the DFC Empty Homes strategy, which aimed to do this, ended in 2018.

The Council therefore commits to developing a strategy alongside DFC, the Housing Executive and other statutory bodies to ensure there is a coordinated action plan to bring disused homes into public use. This action plan will be funded and appropriate measures such as an empty homes rates premium, strengthened compulsory purchase powers and financing support for converting empty homes into social housing are brought forward to ensure it is able to be delivered.

The Council will seek to establish an Empty Homes Partnership, similar to the Scottish model, which will coordinate these efforts with the relevant bodies.

The Council will also seek funding from DFC to appoint an Empty Homes Officer in order to liaise directly with the owners of empty homes, to understand why the home is empty, and to offer tailored solutions to turn it into a home again."

Proposer: Councillor Michael Collins

3.3

Seconder: Councillor Áine Groogan

The motion calls upon the Council to undertake a number of actions in relation to empty homes, including developing a strategy, establishing a partnership and appointing an empty homes officer - the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for strategic policy, working with partners to lead on the Belfast Agenda and also agreeing the Local Development Plan. The motion will therefore be referred to that Committee.

Financial and Resource Implications

3.4 None associated with this report.

Equality or Good Relations Implications

3.5 None.

4.0 Documents Attached

None.

Agenda Item 2b



STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE

| Subject: | Notice of Motion – Developing a Sponsorship and Philanthropy Network in the City |
|--|---|
| Date: | 20th February, 2025 |
| Reporting Officer: | Nora Largey, City Solicitor/Director of Legal and Civic Services |
| Contact Officer: | Jim Hanna, Democratic Services and Governance Manager |
| | |
| Restricted Reports | |
| Is this report restricted? | Yes No X |
| Insert number 1. Information relating to 2. Information likely to 3. Information relating to council holding that 4. Information in connects. Information in relation 6. Information showing person; or (b) to make | reveal the identity of an individual to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the |
| If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted? After Committee Decision After Council Decision Sometime in the future Never | |
| Call-in Is the decision eligible for | Call-in? Yes X No |

| 1.0 | Purpose | of Report/Summary of Main Issues |
|---|--|--|
| 1.1 To consider the Notice of Motion received for the meeting of the Council of | | er the Notice of Motion received for the meeting of the Council on 3rd March, 2025 |
| | in relation | to developing a sponsorship and philanthropy network in the City. |
| 2.0 | Recomme | endation |
| 2.1 | Members | are asked to note that, in accordance with Standing Orders, Notices of Motion |
| | which con | nmit the Council to expenditure or falls within the remit of a particular Committee |
| | must be re | eferred to the appropriate committee for consideration and report. |
| | At this time Members are only asked to note that the Notice of Motion has been received and | |
| | that a sub | sequent report will be brought to Committee, if that Committee so agrees, outlining |
| | a detailed | consideration of the Notice of Motion and the potential costs implications. |
| | The Committee is asked to note that this motion will be referred on the first instance to the | |
| | Strategic F | Policy and Resources Committee. |
| 3.0 | Main Rep | ort |
| | Key Issue | <u>es</u> |
| 3.1 | The Committee will be aware that Standing Orders 13 (m) to (r), as agreed by the its meeting on 4th October, are as follows: | |
| | (m) | The Standards and Business Committee will have delegated authority to adopt or reject Notices of Motion. The Lord Mayor will indicate at the Council meeting those Notices of Motion that have been considered by the Standards and Business Committee and whether such Notices of Motion were rejected or adopted. In either case, the proposer only may speak on the issue at Council. |
| | (n) | The Standards and Business Committee will refer all Notices of Motion directly to a standing committee when the matter to which the Notice of Motion refers falls within the remit of that committee. At Council, the Lord Mayor will indicate that the Notice of Motion was received and referred. There will be no speakers on such Notices of Motion at Council. |
| | (0) | The Standards and Business Committee will refer Notices of Motion for consideration by full Council when the Notice of Motion relates to a strategic of constitutional matter. |
| | (p) | The Standards and Business Committee will not have the power to amend the wording of any Notice of Motion that is being referred to the full Council for debate |
| | (q) | Any amendments to Notice of Motions to be proposed at the Council are to be furnished at least one day in advance of going to the full Council and will be circulated to Party Group Leaders in advance of the Council meeting. |

| 0.0 | (r) In referring any matter to the full Council, the Standards and Business Committee may determine to restrict contributions to the debate in relation to any Notice of Motion to one per political party. At the Council meeting, the Lord Mayor will clearly indicate if the restriction applies. |
|-----|--|
| 3.2 | The following motion has been received: |
| | 'This Council agrees to take on a lead role in developing a sponsorship and philanthropy network in the city, in order to understand how we can align and strengthen the corporate responsibility commitments of organisations and institutions to practically deliver city and community priorities. |
| | This would encourage businesses and individuals to contribute their skills, time and financial support to building a better Belfast.' |
| | Proposer: Councillor Michael Long |
| | Seconder: Councillor Fiona McAteer |
| 3.3 | The motion calls upon the Council to developing a sponsorship and philanthropy network in the city - the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for strategic policy and working with partners to lead on the Belfast Agenda and also agreeing the Local Development Plan. The motion will therefore be referred to that Committee. |
| 3.4 | Financial and Resource Implications |
| | None associated with this report. |
| 3.5 | Equality or Good Relations Implications |
| | None. |
| 4.0 | Documents Attached |
| | None. |



Agenda Item 2c



Subject:

STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE

Notice of Motion - Dogs in Kennels transfer of ownership

| Date: | 20th February, 2025 |
|--|---|
| Reporting Officer: | Nora Largey, City Solicitor/Director of Legal and Civic Services |
| Contact Officer: | Jim Hanna, Democratic Services and Governance Manager |
| | |
| Restricted Reports | |
| Is this report restricted? | Yes No X |
| Insert number 1. Information relating to 2. Information likely to r. 3. Information relating to council holding that i. 4. Information in connects. Information in relation 6. Information showing person; or (b) to make | o any individual reveal the identity of an individual o the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the |
| If Yes, when will the report | t become unrestricted? |
| After Committee Decision After Council Decision | |
| Sometime in the future | |
| Never | |
| Call-in | |
| Is the decision eligible for | Call-in? Yes X No |

| 1.0 | Purpose | of Report/Summary of Main Issues |
|-----|---|--|
| 1.1 | .1 To consider the Notice of Motion received for the meeting of the Council on 3r | |
| | in relation | to the Dogs in Kennels transfer of ownership. |
| 2.0 | Recomm | endation |
| 2.1 | The Com | mittee is asked to consider the motion and agree to either adopt the motion, refer it |
| | for debate | e at the Council meeting (with or without restrictions) or reject the motion. |
| 3.0 | Main Report | |
| | Key Issu | <u>es</u> |
| 3.1 | | mittee will be aware that Standing Orders 13 (m) to (r), as agreed by the Council at ag on 4th October, are as follows: |
| | (m) | The Standards and Business Committee will have delegated authority to adopt or reject Notices of Motion. The Lord Mayor will indicate at the Council meeting those Notices of Motion that have been considered by the Standards and Business Committee and whether such Notices of Motion were rejected or adopted. In either case, the proposer only may speak on the issue at Council. |
| | (n) | The Standards and Business Committee will refer all Notices of Motion directly to a standing committee when the matter to which the Notice of Motion refers falls within the remit of that committee. At Council, the Lord Mayor will indicate that the Notice of Motion was received and referred. There will be no speakers on such Notices of Motion at Council. |
| | (0) | The Standards and Business Committee will refer Notices of Motion for consideration by full Council when the Notice of Motion relates to a strategic or constitutional matter. |
| | (p) | The Standards and Business Committee will not have the power to amend the wording of any Notice of Motion that is being referred to the full Council for debate. |
| | (q) | Any amendments to Notice of Motions to be proposed at the Council are to be furnished at least one day in advance of going to the full Council and will be circulated to Party Group Leaders in advance of the Council meeting. |
| | (r) | In referring any matter to the full Council, the Standards and Business Committee may determine to restrict contributions to the debate in relation to any Notice of Motion to one per political party. At the Council meeting, the Lord Mayor will clearly indicate if the restriction applies. |
| 3.2 | The follow | ving motion has been received: |
| | Dogs in I | kennels transfer of ownership |
| | | Council recognises that the safety of people and communities is paramount, at any dog irrespective of breed or type may display aggression. |
| | | er, this Council also recognises that the provisions, as set out within the bry Rule The Dangerous Dogs (Designated Types) Order (Northern Ireland) |

2024, under powers conferred by Article 25(1)(c) and (8) of The Dogs (Northern Ireland) Order 1983 (the 1983 Order), as relates to XL Bully dogs that make it an offence to rehome is unnecessary cruel. Restriction of rehoming, even by establishments such as rescue centres and animal shelters has led, as is leading to, the unnecessary destruction and euthanasia of healthy animals, which have no history of violence or aggression, and goes against the 'unnecessary suffering' clause in the Welfare of Animals Act NI 2011. Therefore this Council will write to the DAERA minister outlining our opposition to the continuation of the legislation as currently set out, and asks that the Minister allow for managed rehoming by shelters and other specific animal rescue establishments, of dogs including those considered to be XL Bullies with no history of aggression or violence, to suitable owners, to prevent further animal suffering." Proposer: Councillor Anthony Flynn Seconder: Councillor Nicola Verner The motion calls upon the Council to write to the DAERA Minister outlining its opposition to 3.3 the continuation of the legislation as currently set out - the Committee can either adopt the motion, refer it for debate at the Council meeting (with or without restrictions) or reject the motion. 3.4 Financial and Resource Implications None associated with this report. 3.5 **Equality or Good Relations Implications** None. 4.0 **Documents Attached** None.

